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Current legislation in Australia.

For Trans people born abroad, a Recognised Details Certificate (RDC) is a reality that 
must be offered by all States and territories in Australia, in order to be fully recognised at 
law, in their new gender/sex. There are many who have arrived in Australia from Countries 
that do not offer an amendment of documentation, or even have access to the most basic of 
documents, a birth certificate.

To offer a RDC to those born abroad but now residing in Queensland, who are also an 
Australian citizen by grant, makes life a whole lot easier for Trans people. This affords 
them full recognition after sex affirmation surgery, along side those Trans people born in 
Queensland, who can have their birth certificate amended after sex affirmation surgery, via 
the Registry of Births, Deaths and Marriages (RBDM). Currently, this is not the situation 
and only confirms what we born abroad consider to be discrimination!

If Federal Government Departments and Agencies are now willing to accept a RDC in 
order to amend documentation, in many instances without having undergone sex 
affirmation surgery, then this should be applied by all States and Territories in Australia. 
This would follow along the lines of the legislation in force in Victoria and New South 
Wales in regard to offering a RDC to Trans people living in those jurisdictions for not less 
that 12 months.

A RDC is acceptable to the Department of Immigration and Citizenship (DIAC), 
Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade (DFAT) (Passport Office) and some Countries of 
birth.

Within DIAC, both Immigration FOI and Citizenship will accept a RDC from within 
Australia and from abroad.



Quote

The Freedom of Information Act 1982(the FOI Act) provides a mechanism for the 
amendment and annotation of personal records held by Commonwealth Government
agencies. Where clients consider that the Department of Immigration and
Citizenship (the Department) has recorded their details incorrectly they may request
under the FOI Act that the Department amends their details. To seek such
amendment/s of personal records as held by the Department, they will need to
complete a Form 424C (copy attached) and provide evidence of their correct details
as explained by the form. There is no fee to lodge an amendment request. FOI
Section is currently arranging to refund the $30 application fee that you have already
paid to lodge an FOI request to determine your visa status.

Once the amendment/s have been made, the next step is to apply for Certificate of
Evidence of Residency Status (CERS). This application is made on a Form 164
(copy attached) and has an application fee of $100.00
In respect of the visa/residency status of a person after gender reassignment, it is
unlikely that their visa/residency status would change. The visa/residency held by
the client is granted because the client has met criteria associated with that visa. If
the visa holder continues to meet these requirements, their visa/residency status will
not change.
I have been informed that a CERS is imperative for Trans people, as we entered Australia 
as one gender/sex, and have since become another. 

Difficulties encountered by clients who may be permanent residents, but arrived on
parental passports relate mainly to difficulties in locating the record of the original
arrival in Australia. These difficulties arise due to the age of the records. For
example, the records may not be held electronically or in some instances may have
been destroyed. These difficulties, while regrettable, are likely to be encountered by
any client who arrived in Australia in the same circumstances. I can assure you that
the Department is committed to working closely with clients in this situation to find
alternative ways of establishing the information required.

If you would like to discuss these issues further, please contact Elizabeth Low,
Director FOI Section on ph (02) 6223 8565, in respect of the FOI matters and your
local departmental office in respect of matters about visa status (locations of
departmental offices in Australia can be found at
www.immi.Qov.au/contacts/australia/index.htm).

In the interests of assisting Trans community members who wish to make 
applications the Department of Immigration and Citizenship has 
provided the following summary of documentary requirements for some 
specific applications. 



To apply to have departmental records amended under Freedom of 
Information provisions a person must make an application Form 424C -
Request for amendment or annotation to personal records under the 
Freedom of Information Act 1982. There is no application fee for this 
application. Please note: all cases are assessed on a case by case basis.

�x Recognised Details Certificate, issued in Australia by Office of 
Births, Deaths and Marriages (RBDM) in States or Territories, 
OR

o Equivalent overseas document, 
OR

�x Evidence such as surgeon’s and/or psychiatrists statement
�x Change of Name Certificate, if applicable, issued in Australia by 

RBDM (as no previous names are recorded on the RDC)
�x Evidence of when and how you arrived, such as entry stamp in 

passport or details of ship or flight. 

Australian temporary or permanent residents may be required to 
provide evidence of their status to State or Territory authorities in the 
form of a certificate of evidence of resident status. You must make this 
application on a Form 164 - Certificate of evidence of residence status (also 
known as a form 283) and pay a $100.00 application fee. This certificate 
is not required for citizenship application purposes.

Note: the surgeon’s statement would contain information such as 
confirmation that the person has undergone a full gender re-assignment 
procedure. The psychiatrist’s statement would provide confirmation that the 
person is living as their chosen gender of identity, has undergone hormone 
treatment and shows no intention of reverting to their original gender.

Quote from Citizenship Department

It is desirable that the evidence of Australian citizenship reflects the 
person's new identity. Australian citizens applying for new evidence of 
citizenship should apply on Form 119 – Application for evidence of 
Australian citizenship and pay $55.00 application fee.  The following 
documentation should be provided in addition to those that are required 
for all applications:

�x Recognised Details Certificate, issued in Australia by Office of 
Births, Deaths and Marriages (RBDM) in States or Territories, 
OR

o Equivalent overseas document, 



OR
�x Evidence such as surgeon’s and/or psychiatrists letters
�x Original citizenship certificate (which is to be cancelled and 

retained by the department)
�x Change of Name Certificate, if applicable, issued in Australia by 

RBDM (as no previous names are recorded on the RDC)

Note: the surgeon’s statement would contain information such as 
confirmation that the person has undergone a full gender re-assignment 
procedure. The psychiatrist’s statement would provide confirmation that the 
person is living as their chosen gender of identity, has undergone hormone 
treatment and shows no intention of reverting to their original gender

In cases of gender reassignment, it is desirable that the evidence of 
Australian citizenship reflects the person's new identity. Applicants 
should enclose with their application:

  a Recognised Details Certificate (RDC); or either,

  a statement from their surgeon confirming the full gender re-
assignment procedure or a statement from their doctor/counsellor 
confirming that the person is living as their chosen gender of identity, 
has undergone hormone treatment and shows no intention of reverting to 
their original gender; and

  their original citizenship certificate (which is to be cancelled and 
retained by the department); and if applicable,

  evidence to support a name change

DFAT Passport Office

Travelling for the purpose of gender reassignment

People travelling overseas for the specific purpose of gender reassignment 
surgery may be issued with:

�x a full validity passport which indicates their gender at birth as recorded on 
their birth certificate or citizenship record (as confirmed by DIAC), or 

�x a limited validity passport (LVP) in their intended gender with sufficient 
validity to meet return travel needs up to a maximum validity of 12 months, 
whichever is the lesser, or

�x a Document of Identity, with a maximum validity of 12 months and the 
gender field left blank.



Limited Validity Passport (LVP)
Applicants issued with a LVP in the intended gender are required to:

�x Provide appropriate medical evidence from a registered medical 
practitioner, including that gender affirmation surgery is scheduled to take 
place.

�x Sign a statement acknowledging that difficulties crossing international 
borders may still be encountered due to the fact that the gender in the 
passport does not match the physical gender of the client, and that the 
passport has been issued in the intended gender at the client’s request. 

Note - The LVP may be replaced gratis with a passport valid for the remainder of 
the 10 year period in reassigned gender only when the applicant submits a 
cardinal document reflecting the changed sex, evidence of a change of name 
registered with RBDM as well as other usual passport requirements

Document of Identity
Applicants issued with a Document of Identity in these circumstances should be 
advised in writing that:

�x Australian Documents of Identity are widely, although not universally, 
recognised as a valid travel document and the applicant should check with 
the relevant country’s diplomatic representative, prior to their departure 
from Australia, as to whether a Document of Identity will be accepted for 
entry to and exit from that country.

Note - For LVPs and DOIs, the applicant must acknowledge the following in 
writing:

�x Their receipt of the letter from DFAT; and
�x Their agreement to the issue of a Document of Identity.

Change of Name

All applicants who have undergone gender reassignment and wish their passport 
to include a new name must provide the normal RBDM change of name/revised 
birth certificate to support the change of name. Applicants travelling for the 
purpose of gender reassignment surgery and who request a different name on the 
travel document must provide the normal RBDM name change documentation to 
support the change of name, before it can be included in a travel document.

Full validity passports issued in new gender

Applicants must provide 

�x For applicants born in Australia – a birth certificate from their state/territory 
RBDM showing the gender of reassignment; 



�x For applicants born overseas – a revised citizenship certificate to reflect 
their new identity, or given current citizenship certificates no longer record a 
person’s gender, formal evidence from DIAC that it has accepted the 
reassigned gender and amended its citizenship records to reflect the new 
gender. 

Exceptions - Full validity passport to be issued in new gender

Married Applicants

Applicants who claim that they are unable to obtain an amended cardinal 
document because they are married should provide the following documentation 
(note, this only applies to RBDM documents as DIAC will amend its records for 
married persons):

�x A statement from the relevant RBDM/Gender Reassignment Board that 
they have met all requirements for their reassigned gender to be 
recognised, except that they are married or medical evidence as set down 
in the relevant state or territory Registry of Births, Deaths and Marriages;

�x Evidence of living in the character of the other gender such as driver’s 
licence, medicare card, centrelink card, rates notices (or other PIDS 
documents);

�x Original birth certificate;
�x RBDM name change certificate;
�x Marriage certificate;
�x Statutory declaration stating that marriage has not been annulled.

Applicants who have not completed gender reassignment

Applications will be considered on a case by case basis by the APO where an 
applicant claims they are unable to obtain an cardinal document in their preferred 
gender because they are unable to complete gender reassignment surgery due to 
a pre-existing medical condition or because the surgery in the applicant’s case 
carries a higher than normal risk, with the result that completion of the surgery in 
the applicant’s case is considered by a relevant medical practitioner to be 
dangerous or life threatening. The following documentation should accompany the 
application:

1. Documentary evidence that the applicant has approached the relevant body in 
their State or Territory seeking recognition of their change of gender, and the 
body’s written advice as to why it has declined to recognise a change in gender. 

2. A statement from the client’s medical practitioner providing the following 
information:
- confirmation that hormone therapy treatment has been on-going for at least two 
years.
- evidence of any initial surgery completed (e.g. mastectomy)
- details of the pre-existing health condition and advice why surgery carries a 
higher than normal risk



- confirmation that completion of sexual reassignment surgery would be dangerous 
or life-threatening for the particular applicant.

3. Documentary evidence from the client confirming that they live in the community 
in their reassigned gender, e.g. driving licence, Medicare card, credit card.

Other

Other cases will be considered on a case by case basis by the APO. (Note - This 
exception policy would generally be used for children who are indeterminate sex 
and unable to undergo surgery due to their age).

Applicants who claim that they are unable to meet requirements because of 
unique circumstances, including a failure to meet the requirements of the relevant 
state or territory legislation or by DIAC, should provide the following supporting 
documentation, 

�x Statement (B11) of reason why the applicant cannot meet requirements;
�x Medical practitioner’s statement, where relevant, providing reasons for the 

applicant’s inability to undergo gender reassignment; 
�x Evidence of living in the character of the other gender such as driver’s 

licence, medicare card, centrelink card, rates notices (or other PIDS 
documents);

�x Original birth certificate;
�x Name change certificate;
�x Passport Office Manager’s recommendation.

The relevant body in each State or Territory for recognising gender 
reassignment is listed in the table below.

State or 
Territory

Responsible 
Body

Contact Details

Australian 
Capital 
Territory

Births, 
Deaths and 
Marriages 
Unit

http://www.ors.act.gov.au/bdm/index.html
(02) 62070 460

New South 
Wales

Registry of 
Births Deaths 
and 
Marriages

www.bdm.nsw.gov.au
1300 655 236

Northern 
Territory

Registry of 
Births Deaths 
and 
Marriages

www.bdm.nt.gov.au
(08) 8999 6119 / (08) 8951 5339

Queensland Registry of 
Births Deaths 
and 
Marriages

www.justice.qld.gov.au/16.htm
1300 366 430



South 
Australia

Magistrates 
Court of 
South 
Australia

http://www.courts.sa.gov.au/courts/magistrates/index
.html (www.ocba.sa.gov.au/bdm/)
(08) 8204 2444 ((08) 8204 9599)

Tasmania Registry of 
Births, 
Deaths and 
Marriages

www.justice.tas.gov.au
1300 135 513

Victoria Registry of 
Births, 
Deaths and 
Marriages

https://online.justice.vic.gov.au/bdm/home
1300 369 367

Country of Birth

Many Countries of birth will accept a RDC if it is offered here in Australia, as 
confirmation of sex affirmation surgery, in order to amend documentation, such as a birth 
certificate. The UK via its Gender Recognition Act 2004, will accept those offered in 
Australia in order to grant their own Gender Recognition Certificate (GRC) and then 
amend the birth certificate, pension rights (down to 60 if now female progressive increase 
in age, as here in Australia), Tax Office and Passport office. This is all automatic after 
issuance of the GRC, as each office is notified of the change of gender/sex via the Gender 
Recognition Panel (GRP) in Leicester. This makes it extremely easy to amend your UK 
documentation, as the 2 requirements have been met here for conformation of sex 
affirmation surgery, in order to receive a RDC. All we then need to do, is to send the RDC, 
application form and fee, if payable to the GRP in Leicester and we are then fully 
recognised in our new gender/sex in the UK. 

At present this does not happen in Queensland, Tasmania, The ACT or The Northern 
Territory. If it did, it would definitely make life that much easier and simpler when coming 
to amend documentation from abroad.  

Yours Sincerely, Kathy Anne Noble.
President, Changeling Aspects


